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Administrative Review  
 
Date:   November 11, 2022 

To:   Jason Plourde, Chair, Zoning Board of Adjustment 

From:  Lincoln Daley, Community Development Director 

Subject:  Case #2022-26: Stephen Stepanek and SPJ Real Estate Associates, LLC for the property 
located at Map 25, Lot 119, 1 Hampshire Drive – Special Exception Application (Continued 
from 11/3/22) 

The applicants are before the Board of Adjustment seeking a seeking a Milford Zoning Ordinance, Article V, 
Section 5.05.2 to allow a change of use of the existing commercial/industrial building from a manufacturing use to 
a distribution facility on a property located in the Commercial ‘C’ Zoning District.  In reviewing the files for this 
property, I offer the following comments: 

1. Existing Conditions: 

a. The subject property consists of approximately 3.25 acres with approximately 28.75 linear feet of 
frontage on Elm Street.  The property and building are former location of the 61,342 s.f. (gross s.f) 
Hampshire Paper Corporation industrial manufacturing/warehousing building. The building is located 
in the rear portion of the property and is mainly vacant.  

b. Access/egress from the property is by way of the existing driveway curb cut on Elm Street. The 
approved 1991 manufacturing/warehousing site plan shows 75 total parking spacing associated with 
the former Hampshire Paper Corporation (56 manufacturing and 34 warehouse spaces).   

c. The property is serviced by municipal water and waste water.  

d. The subject property is situated in an established mixed used area consisting of commercial office space 
and services, single- and multi-family residences, municipal facilities, and a railway network. See 
attached Neighborhood Use Map.   

2. The applicant is seeking a change of use for the building from the existing manufacturing and warehouse 
use to a multi-tenant distribution facility.  The applicants intends to lease the building for up to 3 tenants 
each functioning as separate distribution centers.  The applicant has stated that the distribution facilities 
will result in a less intense historical use of the property use due to a reduction in overall vehicle/truck 
traffic and the number of total employees on site/within the building require to manage/operate the proposed 
uses.  

3. A distribution facility falls under the category of a distribution and mailing facility. In accordance with the 
Zoning Ordinance, Article IV Definitions, distribution facilities are defined as uses which constitute the 
temporary storage and/or shipping of goods, including mail order processing, package distribution and 
mailing. Pursuant to Section 5.05.2.A.7, a distribution facility is permitted in the Commercial ‘C’ Zoning 
District through the issuance of a Special Exception by Board of Adjustment.  

4. The applicant will be required to submit the required building permits for each of the proposed tenants to 
comply with State building, health, safety codes/regulations.  
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5. The applicant should be prepared to discuss the following: 

a. Discuss the operations of the anticipated distribution facilities individually and collectively. As part of 
the response, please identify (1) the total anticipated maximum number of vehicles, delivery trucks, 
and employees on the site/within the building, (2) hours of operation, (3) the potential impact to the 
neighborhood and transportation roadway network.  

b. Provide a brief narrative comparing the former Hampshire Paper Corporation Use to the proposed 
distribution facility uses.  

c. Please discuss the management and storage of products/materials and waste/trash.  The 1991 approved 
site plan states that all rubbish shall be stored with the building.  
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Aerial Photos  of Subject Property: 
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